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In the United States Court of Appeals for the 
District of Columbia 

October Term, 1941 

No. 8071 

United States of America, appellant 

v. 

Dorset K. Offutt and Robert Jordan Sopourn, appellees 

BRIEF FOR APPELLANT 

JURISDICTIONAL statement 

This action was commenced by the filing of an indictment on 

June 30, 1941, naming as defendants Dorsey K. Offutt and 
Robert Jordan Sopourn (Appellant’s App. 14). On July 23, 

1941, the demurrer of Dorsey K. Offutt to the indictment was 

filed (Appellant’s App. 17). On July 24, 1941, the demurrer 

of Robert Jordan Sopourn to the indictment was filed (Appel¬ 

lant’s App. 18). On October 10th the demurrers to the indict¬ 

ment w’ere argued and sustained (Appellant’s App. 18). On 
October 16th a notice of appeal was filed by the United States. 

On December 1st the record was filed in this Court. The in¬ 

dictment alleged that the appellees at and within the District 
of Columbia on the 14th day of April 1941 and thereafter con¬ 

spired to commit offenses against the United States, each of¬ 

fense to consist in a violation of Section 11 of the Selective 

Training and Service Act of 1940. The District Court had 

jurisdiction by virtue of Section 763, R. S. D. C. Act of Feb¬ 

ruary 27, 1877, 19 Stat. 253, c. 69, Sec. 2, T. 11, Sec. 306, D. C. 

Code (1940). This Court has jurisdiction to review the judg¬ 

ment of the lower court by virtue of the Act of February 9, 

(l) 
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1893, 27 Stat. 435, c. 74, Sec. 7; March 3, 1901, 31 Stat. 1225, 
c. 854, Sec. 226; March 3, 1921. 41 Stat. 1312, c. 125, Sec. 12, 

T. 17, Sec. 101, D. C. Code (1940). 

STATEMENT OF THE CASE 

The indictment filed in the lower court in case No. 68017 on 
June 30. 1941, which is set out in full in the Appellant’s App. 

14, alleged in substance that on October 16, 1940, appellee 

Sopourn was a person subject to the provisions of the Selec¬ 
tive Training and Service Act of 1940 and was a person re¬ 

quired to register under the terms and provisions of said Act; 

that he had so registered, had been classified as I-A, and had 

been duly designated to fill a call under the Act; and that by 

an order of induction he had been directed to report at a 

specified time and place for induction into the army of the 

United States. The inducement of the indictment concluded 
with the allegation that by reason of the foregoing premises 

appellee Sopourn was a person charged with a duty under the 

Selective Training and Service Act of 1940. The charging 
part of the indictment alleges that the appellees on and after 
the 14th day of April 1941, and at and within the District of 

Columbia, unlawfully, etc., conspired to commit offenses 

against the United States, each said offense to consist in a 
violation of Section 11 of the Selective Training and Service 

Act of 1940, that is, to cause appellee Sopourn to knowingly 

and willfully fail and neglect to perform the duty required by 
the Act of reporting for induction as ordered, to cause appel¬ 

lee Sopourn to evade service in the land forces of the United 

States, and to cause appellee Sopourn to evade a requirement 

of the Act. The indictment concludes with the allegation 
that in pursuance of the conspiracy and to effect the object 

thereof the appellees did twelve overt acts which are enu¬ 

merated. The acts enumerated consist of conversations be¬ 
tween the appellees and others, the preparation of affidavits 
by the appellees, the writing of a letter, the delivery of the 

letter, and the failure to report for induction. The decision 

of the lower court sustaining the respective demurrers was 
made without opinion (Appellant’s App. 18). 
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STATUTES INVOLVED 

Selective Training and Service Act, Public, No. 783, Ch. 

720, Sec. 11, 76th Congress, 3d Session: 

“Any person charged as herein provided with the 

duty of carrying out any of the provisions of this act, or 
the rules or regulations made or directions given there¬ 

under, who shall knowingly fail or neglect to perform 

such duty, and any person charged with such duty, or 
having and exercising any authority under said act, 

rules, regulations, or directions who shall knowingly 

make, or be a party to the making, of any false, im¬ 
proper, or incorrect registration, classification, physical 

or mental examination, deferment, induction, enroll¬ 

ment, or muster and any person who shall knowingly 

make or be a party to the making of, any false state¬ 
ment or certificate as to the fitness or unfitness or 

liability or nonliability of himself or any other person 

for service under the provisions of this act, or rules, reg¬ 
ulations, or directions made pursuant thereto, or who 

otherwise evades registration or service in the land or 

naval forces or any of the requirements of this act, or 
who knowingly counsels, aids, or abets another to evade 
registration or service in the land or naval forces or 

any of the requirements of this act, or of said rules, 

regulations, or directions, or who in any manner shall 
knowingly fail or neglect to perform any duty required 
of him under or in the execution of this act, or rules 

or regulations made pursuant to this act, or any 

person or persons who shall knowingly hinder or interfere 

in any way by force or violence with the adminis¬ 

tration of this act or the rules or regulations made 

pursuant thereto, or conspire to do so, shall, upon convic¬ 
tion in the District court of the United States having 
jurisdiction thereof, be punished by imprisonment for 

not more than five years or a fine of not more than 

$10,000, or by both such fine and imprisonment, or if 

subject to military or naval law may be tried by court 
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martial, and, on conviction, shall suffer such punish¬ 

ment as a court martial may direct. 

“No person shall be tried by any military or naval 

court martial in any case arising under this act unless 

such person has been actually inducted for the training 

and service prescribed under this act or unless he is 

subject to trial by court martial under laws in force 

prior to the enactment of this act. Precedence shall 
be given by courts to the trial of cases arising under 

this act.” 

18 U. S. C. A. § 88: 

“Conspiring to commit offense against United States. 

If two or more persons conspire either to commit any 

offense against the United States, or to defraud the 

United States in any manner or for any purpose, and 

one or more of such parties do any act to effect the object 

of the conspiracy, each of the parties to such conspiracy 

shall be fined not more than $10,000, or imprisoned 

not more than two years, or both (R. S. § 5440; May 

17, 1879. c. 8. 21 Stat. 4; Mar. 4. 1909, c. 321, § 37. 35 

Stat. 1096).” 

18 U. S. C. §556: 

“No indictment found and presented by a grand jury 

in any district or other court of the United States shall 

be deemed insufficient, nor shall the trial, judgment, or 

other proceeding thereon be affected by reason of any 

defect or imperfection in matter of form only, which 

shall not tend to the prejudice of the defendant, or by 

reason of the attendance before the grand jury during 

the taking of testimony of one or more clerks or stenog¬ 

raphers employed in a clerical capacity to assist the 

district attorney or other counsel for the Government 

who shall, in that connection, be deemed to be per¬ 

sons acting for and on behalf of the United States in an 

official capacity and function (R. S. § 1025; May 18, 

1933, c. 31, 48 Stat. 58).” 
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ASSIGNMENT OF ERRORS 

1. The Court erred in sustaining the several demurrers to 

the indictment. 

2. The Court erred in holding the indictment was insufficient 

in law. 

3. The Court erred in its construction and interpretation 

of Section 88, Title 18, United States Code. 

4. The Court erred in construing the indictment as not 
properly setting forth facts constituting violation by the ap¬ 

pellees of the provisions of Section 88, Title 18, United States 

Code. 

5. The Court erred in other respects apparent of record. 

SUMMARY OF ARGUMENT 

The Selective Training and Service Act of 1940 makes it 
unlawful for any person charged with the duty of carrying out 

any provisions of the Act or of the rules or regulations or direc¬ 
tions thereunder to knowingly fail and neglect to perform such 

duty. It further provides that anyone who evades service in 

the land or naval forces of the United States is guilty of an 

offense and shall be punished, and it further provides that any¬ 

one who evades a requirement of the Act is guilty of an offense 

and shall be punished. These offenses are offenses against the 

United States and, consequently, a conspiracy to commit either 

or all of these offenses is a violation of the conspiracy statute 

of the United States if an overt act be done in furtherance of 

the conspiracy and to effect the object thereof. Since the in¬ 

dictment charges a conspiracy to commit these offenses and 
the doing of acts to effect the object of the conspiracy, it is 

sufficient in law. The indictment is sufficiently specific in ad¬ 

vising the appellees of the nature of the crime with which they 

are charged and contains sufficient detail in defining the crime 

so that appellees are protected against a further indictment 

for the same offense. Since it is alleged that the overt acts 

were done in pursuance of the conspiracy and to effect the 

object thereof, it is not necessary that the overt acts be in 

themselves criminal. 
•134023—12-2 
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ARGUMENT 

Since the judgment of the lower court was rendered without 
opinion there is nothing of record to indicate in what respects, 

if any, the indictment is deficient, nor is there anything of 

record to indicate the grounds upon which the demurrers to 

the indictment were sustained. In the absence of any specific 

objection to the substance or form of the indictment, the posi¬ 

tion of the Government in this brief will be that the indict¬ 
ment charges the crime of conspiring to violate the Selective 

Training and Service Act of 1940 which Act is constitutional 

and properly delineates a criminal offense, that the elements 
of the conspiracy are charged in the indictment with sufficient 

detail, that the language of the indictment is sufficiently specific 

so that the appellees are protected against a further indict¬ 

ment for the same offense, and that, therefore, the indictment 

is sufficient in law’. 

Being confident of the validity of the indictment the Gov¬ 

ernment will here merely cite generally cases indicating its 

sufficiency and will reserve, for its reply brief, discussion of 

specific points w’hich the appellees may raise. 

In the case of O'Connell v. United States, 253 U. S. 142. 64 
L. ed. 827, the Supreme Court was considering a conviction 
under an indictment charging the defendants with conspiracy 

to violate the espionage act and in the second count with con¬ 

spiracy to violate Section 6 of the Selective Service Law of 

1917, Act of May 18, 1917, c. 15, 40 Stat. 76, 80. The consti¬ 
tutionality of both acts was upheld on demurrer. There was a 

further objection to the second count of the indictment in that 

it did not allege that the conspirators were officers or persons 
charged with the duty of carrying the Act into effect. As to this 

point the Court held that Section 6 of the Selective Service Act 

of 1917 was sufficiently broad to include nonofficial persons, cit¬ 

ing Fraina v. United States, 255 Fed. 28, 33. Section 11 of 

the Selective Training and Service Act of 1940 seems to have 
followed the language of Section 6 of the Selective Service Act 
of 1917 w’ith some elaboration. It is felt, however, that the 

opinion in O'Connell v. United States is applicable with equal 

force to the Selective Training and Service Act of 1940 and that 
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under that case the Selective Training and Service Act of 1940 

is constitutional and that the appellees come within the puni¬ 

tive provisions of Section 11. 
The law of conspiracy is discussed and summarized in the 

case of United States v. Rabinowich, 238 U. S. 78, 59 L. ed. 1211. 

From that case and the cases cited therein it appears that an 

indictment charging a conspiracy is sufficient if it charges, 

first, a conspiracy to commit a crime and, secondly, an overt 

act to effect the object of the conspiracy. Here the indictment 

charges that the appellees (1) did conspire, combine, confed¬ 
erate, and agree together and with other persons to the Grand 
Jurors unknown (2) to commit divers offenses against the 

United States, each to consist in a violation of Section 11 of 

the Selective Training and Service Act of 1940 (the violations 

are then enumerated) (3) in pursuance of said conspiracy and 

to effect the object thereof they did do certain enumerated acts. 

It is thus apparent that the indictment alleges the crime of 

conspiracy under Section 88 of Title 18, United States Code. 

In the case of Fraina v. United States, 255 Fed. 28, the law 

enunciated by the Supreme Court in United States v. Rabino¬ 

vnch was applied to conspiracy to violate the Selective Service 

Act of 1917, and much that is said in that case appears to sup¬ 

port the validity of the indictment here. 

In considering the validity of an indictment under the Selec¬ 

tive Training and Service Act of 1940, the court is not re¬ 

stricted to the allegations of the indictment, but may take 

judicial notice of the promulgation of regulations thereunder 

as established in the case of Zuziak v. United States, 119 

F. (2d) 140. 

It is not required that the overt acts alleged to be done in 

furtherance of the conspiracy and to effect the object thereof 

be in themselves criminal, United States v. Rabinowich, supra; 

Heskett v. United States, 58 F. (2d) 897,899 (C. C. A. 9th) and 

cases there cited. In the case last cited the overt acts were 
that the defendants made two visits to the residence of Toyoki 

Sonoda Downey. 
CONCLUSION 

Since the charges in the indictment contain the elements of 

the offense known as conspiracy, and since the indictment is 
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sufficient to advise the appellees of the nature and the elements 

of the offense with which they are charged and to protect them 

against a further indictment for the same offense, it is sufficient 
in law, and the action of the low'er court in sustaining the re¬ 

spective demurrers to the indictment was erroneous, and the 
judgment should be reversed. 

Respectfully submitted. 

Edward M. Curran, 

United States Attorney, 

John L. Laskey, 

Assistant United States Attorney, 
Attorneys for Appellant. 
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UNITED STATES VS. D. K. OFFUTT AND R. J. SOPOURN 1 

District Court of the United States for the District of Columbia 

Criminal No. 68017 

United States of America 

vs. 

Dorsey K. Offutt, Robert Jordan Sopourn 

Notice of Appeal 

United States Court of Appeals for the District of Columbia. 
Filed October 16, 1941. Joseph W. Stewart, Clerk. 

United States. 
(Name and address of appellant) 

United States Attorney, District Court House. 
(Name and address of appellant's attorney) 

Offense, Violation of Section 88, Title 18. United States 
Code. 

Date of judgment, October 10, 1941. 
Brief description of judgment or sentence, Order sustaining 

demurrer to indictment and dismissal of indictment. 
Name of prison where now confined, if not on bail-. 
I, the above-named appellant, hereby appeal to the Court 

of Appeals of the District of Columbia from the judgment 
above-mentioned on the grounds set forth below. 

United States of America, 

Appellant. 
Edward M. Curran, 

J. L. L. 
Edward M. Curran, 

United States Attorney, 
John L. Laskey, 

John L. Laskey, 
Assistant United States Attorney, 

Attorneys for Appellant. 
Date, October 16, 1941. 

A true copy. 

Test: 

[seal] Charles E. Stewart, 

Clerk. 
By Richard L. Flippo, 

Assistant Clerk. 
(ID 



2 UNITED STATES VS. D. K. OFFUTT AND R. J. SOPOURN 

Grounds of Appeal 

1. The court erred in sustaining the several demurrers to 
the indictment. 

2. The court erred in holding the indictment was insufficient 
in law. 

3. The court erred in holding that in an indictment for a 
conspiracy it is necessary that the overt acts be in themselves 
criminal. 

4. The court erred in its construction and interpretation of 
Section 88. Title 18, United States Code. 

5. The court erred in construing the indictment as not prop¬ 
erly setting forth facts constituting violation by the defendants 
of the provisions of Section 8S, Title 18, United States Code. 

6. The court erred in other respects apparent of record. 
Service of a copy of the above notice of appeal is acknowl¬ 

edged this 16th day of October 1941. 

Henry J. Quinn, 

J. L. L. 
Attorney for defendant Dorsey K. Offutt. 

Charles E. Ford, 
Lawrence Koenigsberger, 

Attorneys for defendant Robert Jordan Sopourn. 

District Court of the United States for the District of Columbia 

Clerk’s statement of docket entries to accompany duplicate 
notice of appeal to the Court of Appeals. 

Criminal No. 68017 

United States of America 

vs. 

Robert Jordan Sopourn, Dorsey K. Offutt 

United States Court of Appeals for the District of Columbia. 
Filed Oct. 16. 1941. Joseph W. Stewart, Clerk. 

Vio. Sec. 88, Title 18, U. S. C. #2, Deft.—Henry I. Quinn, 
Atty.; Govt.—John Laskey, Asst. D. A. #1, Deft.—Charles 
E. Ford, Atty., Lawrence Koenigsberger, Atty. 

(12) 



UNITED STATES VS. D. K. OFFUTT AND R. J. SOPOURN 3 

1941 
June 30—Presentment and indictment filed. 

30—Each: Bond fixed by Court at $500.00. 
Each: Recog. $500.00 taken with Patrick F. O’Con¬ 

nor, surety. 
July 9—Each: Defendant granted 7 additional days, etc. 

16—Each: Defendant granted 7 additional days, etc. 
23— No. 2: Demurrer to indictment filed. 
24— No. 1: Demurrer to indictment filed. 

Oct. 10—Each: Demurrer to the indictment is argued and 
sustained. 

Date, October 16, 1941. 
Attest: 
[seal] Charles E. Stewart, 

Clerk. 
By Richard L. Flippo, 

Assistant Clerk. 

Note.—This statement from the docket entries is intended 
suitably to identify the case and not as a substitute for the 
record on appeal, which is to be prepared and certified as pro¬ 
vided in Rules 7, 8, and 9 of Supreme Court U. S. 

District Court of the United States for the District of Columbia 

Criminal No. 68017 

United States 

vs. 

Robert Jordan Sopourn, Dorsey K. Offutt 

United States Court of Appeals for the District of Columbia. 
Filed Dec. 1,1941. Joseph W. Stewart, Clerk. 

United States of America, 

District of Columbia, ss: 

Be it remembered, that in the District Court of the United 
States for the District of Columbia, at the City of Washington, 
in said District, at the times hereinafter mentioned, the follow¬ 
ing papers were filed and proceedings had, in the above-entitled 
cause, to wit: 

(13) 



4 UNITED STATES VS. D. K. OFFUTT AND R. J. SOPOURN 

Indictment 

Filed in open court June 30. 1941 

District Court of the United States for the District of Columbia 

Holding a Criminal Term 

April Term. A. D. 1941 

District of Columbia, .$$: 

The Grand Jurors of the United States of America, in and 
for the District of Columbia aforesaid, upon their oath, do 
present: 

That on the sixteenth day of October 1940, one Robert 
Jordan Sopourn was a male citizen of the United States be¬ 
tween the ages of 21 years and 36 years, and was a person liable 
for military training and service in the land or naval forces 
of the United States under the terms and provisions of the 
Selective Training and Service Act of 1940 and the Rules and 
Regulations promulgated thereunder, and was a person who 
was required to present himself to the Registration Board 
established by law under the said Act and the said Rules and 
Regulations, and there register with said Board as required 
by said Act. and was a person who had duly registered with a 
Local Board of the District of Columbia, to wit. Local Board 
No. S. 

And prior to April 19. 1941, said Robert Jordan Sopourn 
was a person who had duly filed a questionnaire with said 
Local Board, and who had been duly classified in Class 1-A, 
and whose order of call for induction into the military service 
of the United States had been reached in accordance with the 
said Act and the said Rules and Regulations, and who had 
been duly designated to fill a call regularly made pursuant to 
said Act and said Rules and Regulations, and who had been 
duly notified of his selection and designation to fill said call, 
and who had. by a certain order of induction, duly issued pur¬ 
suant to said Act and said Rules and Regulations been directed 
to report on April 19. 1941. at the National Guard Armory at 
Sixth and Pennsylvania Avenue Northwest, in the City of 
Washington. District of Columbia, for induction into the army 
of the United States. 

And by reason of the premises aforesaid, the said Robert 
Jordan Sopourn was a “selected man” within the meaning of 
said Act and said Rules and Regulations, charged with a duty 
of carrying out a provision and a requirement of the said Act 

(14) 



UNITED states vs. d. k. offutt and r. j. sopourn 5 

and the said Rules and Regulations and directions given there¬ 
under, that is to say, with the duty and requirement of re¬ 
porting for induction into the army of the United States at 
the time and place aforesaid. 

And the Grand Jurors aforesaid, upon their oath aforesaid, 
do further present: 

That, well knowing the premises aforesaid, said Robert Jor¬ 
dan Sopourn and one Dorsey K. Offutt on, to wit, the four¬ 
teenth day of April 1941, and thereafter, and at and within 
the District of Columbia, unlawfully, wilfully, and knowingly 
did conspire, combine, confederate, and agree together, and 
with each other, and with other persons to the Grand Jurors 
aforesaid unknown, to commit divers offenses against the 
United States, each to consist in a violation of Section eleven 
of the Selective Training and Service Act of 1940, to wit, un¬ 
lawfully to cause the said Robert Jordan Sopourn to know¬ 
ingly and wilfully fail and neglect to perform a duty required 
of him under the said Selective Training and Service Act of 
1940, the said duty being to report for induction into the army 
of the United States on April 19, 1941, as required by the 
said Act and the said Rules and Regulations and directions 
given thereunder to the said Robert Jordan Sopourn as afore¬ 
said, and, to wit, unlawfully to cause the said Robert Jordan 
Sopourn to knowingly, wilfully, and unlawfully evade service 
in the land forces of the United States, and, to wit, unlaw¬ 
fully to cause the said Robert Jordan Sopourn to knowingly, 
wilfully, and unlawfully evade a requirement of the said Act, 
and, in pursuance of said conspiracy and to effect the object 
thereof, the said Robert Jordan Sopourn and the said Dorsey 
K. Offutt did do, at the respective dates and places hereinafter 
mentioned, the following overt acts: 

overt acts 

1. On or about April 14, 1941, Robert Jordan Sopourn had a 
certain conversation with David G. Arnold, Chairman of Local 
Board No. 8, regarding the order to the said Robert Jordan 
Sopourn to report for induction on April 19, 1941. The said 
conversation was had in the office of Local Board No. 8, Adams 
Elementary School, Nineteenth and California Streets North¬ 
west, Washington, D. C. 

2. On or about April 18. 1941, Robert Jordan Sopourn had a 
certain conversation with David G. Arnold, Chairman of Local 
Board No. 8, on Eighteenth Street Northwest, City of Wash¬ 
ington, District of Columbia. 

(15) 



6 UNITED STATES VS. D. K. OFFUTT AND R. J. SOPOURN 

3. On or about April 18, 1941, Dorsey K. Offutt had certain 
telephone conversations with David G. Arnold, Chairman of 
Local Board No. 8, concerning the order to report for induc¬ 
tion theretofore issued to Robert Jordan Sopourn. 

4. On or about April 18,1941, and at the office of Dorsey K. 
Offutt, in the District of Columbia, Dorsey K. Offutt and 
Robert Jordan Sopourn held a conversation regarding the 
necessity of Robert Jordan Sopourn reporting for induction 
on April 19,1941. 

5. On or about April 18, 1941, and at the District of Colum¬ 
bia. Dorsey K. Offutt prepared or caused to be prepared two 
certain affidavits relating to a supposed claim of dependency 
of Robert Jordan Sopourn. 

6. On or about April 18, 1941, and at the District of Colum¬ 
bia, Dorsey K. Offutt wrote or caused to be written a certain 
letter addressed to Local Board No. 8. 

7. On or about April 18, 1941, Dorsey K. Offutt delivered 
or caused to be delivered the said letter, together with the said 
affidavits, at the apartment of one David G. Arnold, Chair¬ 
man of Local Board No. 8. 

8. On or about April 18, 1941, Dorsey K. Offutt had a cer¬ 
tain conversation with one Leonard A. Block in or near the 
Woodward Building, in the City of Washington, District of 
Columbia. 

9. On or about April 18, 1941, Dorsey K. Offutt had a fur¬ 
ther conversation with Leonard A. Block in or near the 
Woodward Building, in the City of Washington, District of 
Columbia. 

10. On or about April 18, 1941, Dorsey K. Offutt advised 
Robert Jordan Sopourn not to report on April 19. 1941, for 
induction into the army of the United States. 

11. On or about April 19, 1941, Dorsey K. Offutt had a cer¬ 
tain telephone conversation with Leonard A. Block concern¬ 
ing the order to Robert Jordan Sopourn to report for induction. 

12. On or about April 19, 1941, Robert Jordan Sopourn did 
knowingly and wilfully fail and neglect to report for induction 
as ordered. 

And so the Grand Jurors aforesaid, upon their oath, do say: 
That the said Robert Jordan Sopourn and the said Dorsey 

K. Offutt, throughout the period heretofore stated, and at and 
within the District of Columbia, unlawfully, wilfully, and 
knowingly did conspire to commit divers offenses against the 
United States, and each did then and there do acts to effect 
the object of the said conspiracy against the form of the statute 

(16) 



UNITED STATES VS. D. K. OFFUTT AND R. J. SOPOURN 7 

in such case made and provided, and against the peace and 
government of the said United States. 

Edward M. Curran, 
Attorney of the United States in 

and for the District of Columbia. 

[Endorsed:] Criminal No. 68017. United States vs. Rob¬ 
ert Jordan Sopourn, Dorsey K. Offutt. Vio. Sec. 88, Title 18, 
U. S. Code. A true bill: James T. Edwards, Foreman. 

Demurrer 

Filed July 23, 1941 

***** 

Comes now the defendant, Dorsey K. Offutt, by his attorney 
and demurring to the indictment herein says the same is bad 
in substance on the following grounds: 

1. The basis of the indictment is the allegation that Sopourn 
was a person “charged with a duty of carrying out a provision 
and requirement” of the Act, and the indictment shows on its 
face Sopourn could not be such a person. 

2. The indictment charges a conspiracy to commit three 
offenses against the Selective Service Act. As to these offenses: 

First Offense: Conspiracy to cause Sopourn knowingly and 
wilfully to fail and neglect to perform a duty required of him 
by the Act, i. e., to report for induction. This charges an im¬ 
possible offense, there being no way for defendants to conspire 
to neglect to do something and no way for any overt act to be 
committed in furtherance of such a conspiracy. 

The conspiracy statute, 18 U. S. C. A., Sec. 88, punishes con¬ 
spiracy only in the event that overt acts are committed “to 
effect the object of the conspiracy.” If the indictment is inter¬ 
preted to allege a deliberate conspiracy to have Sopourn merely 
fail to do something (a logical impossibility) it is obvious that 
in the nature of things no overt acts could be committed “to 
effect the object of the conspiracy.” 

Second Offense: Conspiracy to cause Sopourn “to knowingly, 
wilfully, and unlawfully evade service.” The Act creates no 
such offense, the offense being merely to “evade.” The charge 
of knowingly, wilfully, and unlawfully evading service being 
obviously of a higher grade of turpitude than that denounced 
by the Statute, the charge has no basis in law, is obviously 
prejudicial, and must be quashed. 

(17) 
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Third Offense: Conspiracy to cause Sopourn “knowingly, 
wilfully, and unlawfully to evade a requirement of the Act” is 
objectionable for the same reason and for the additional and 
obvious one that it fails to disclose which of the thousands of 
requirements of the Act the defendants are supposed to have 
conspired to have Sopourn evade. 

3. For such other reasons as appear on the face of the indict¬ 
ment and may be argued at the hearing hereof. 

Respectfully submitted. 
Henry I. Quinn, 

Attorney for Defendant, Dorsey K. Offutt. 

Demurrer of Robert Jordon Sopourn to indictment 

Filed July 24, 1941 

***** 

The defendant Robert Jordon Sopourn demurs to the indict¬ 
ment and says that said indictment is bad in substance. 

Among the matters intended to be argued in support of the 
foregoing demurrer, are the following: 

1. The indictment fails to charge said defendant with an 
offense against the United States. 

2. The portion of the Selective Training and Service Act of 
1940, which the defendants are charged with conspiring to 
violate, is void for uncertainty in that it does not appear there¬ 
from whether the offense attempted to be defined thereby is a 
counselling to evade service without more, or is a counselling 
to evade service followed by an evasion. 

3. That there can be no such offense as a conspiracy not to do 
an act. 

4. That the overt acts charged in the indictment are not overt 
acts within the meaning and requirement of law. 

5. And other matters appearing upon the face of said indict¬ 
ment. 

Charles E. Ford, 
Lawrence Koenigsberger, 

Attorneys for Defendant Robert Jordon Sopourn. 

District Court of the United States for the District of Columbia 

Friday, October 10th, A. D., 1941 

The Court resumes its session pursuant to adjournment. 
Mr. Justice Goldsborough, presiding. 

* * * * * 

(IS) 
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Come as well the Attorney of the United States, as the de¬ 
fendants in proper person, each according to his recognizance, 
the defendant Sopourn by his attorney, Lawrence Koenigs- 
berger, Esquire, and the defendant Offutt by his attorney, 
Henry I. Quinn, Esquire; whereupon the defendants’ demurrer 
coming on to be heard, after argument by the counsel is by the 
Court sustained. 

Assignment of errors 

Filed November 3, 1941 

* * # * * 

1. The Court erred in sustaining the several demurrers to 
the indictment. 

2. The Court erred in holding the indictment was insuf¬ 
ficient in law. 

3. The Court erred in its construction and interpretation 
of Section 88, Title 18, United States Code. 

4. The Court erred in construing the indictment as not prop¬ 
erly setting forth facts constituting violation by the defendants 
of the provisions of Section 88, Title 18, United States Code. 

5. The Court erred in other respects apparent of record. 
Edward M. Curran, 

United States Attorney. 
John L. Laskey, 

Assistant United States Attorney. 

Agreed designation of record on appeal 

Filed November 25, 1941 

* # # # * 

The Clerk will please prepare for transmission to the United 
States Court of Appeals for the District of Columbia as the 
record on appeal herein: 

1. The indictment. 
2. The demurrer of the defendant, Dorsey K. Offutt. 
3. The demurrer of the defendant, Robert Jordan Sopourn. 
4. Minute entry showing argument of the demurrer. 

(19) 
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5. Minute entry showing the Court’s action on the demurrer. 
6. This designation. 

Edward M. Curran, 

United States Attorney. 
John L. Laskey, 

Assistant United States Attorney. 
Henry I. Quinn, 

Attorney for Defendant Dorsey K. Offutt. 
Charles E. Ford, 

Lawrence Koenigsberger, 

Attorneys for Defendant Robert Jordon Sopourn. 

This designation approved this 24th day of November 1941. 
T. Alan Goldsborough, 

Justice. 

District Court of the United States for the District of 
Columbia 

United States of America, 
District of Columbia, ss: 

I. Charles E. Stewart, Clerk of the District Court of the 
United States for the District of Columbia, hereby certify the 
foregoing pages numbered from 1 to 11, both inclusive, to be a 
true and correct transcript of the record, according to direc¬ 
tions of counsel herein filed, copy of which is made part of 
this transcript, and in accordance with Rule 75 (g) of the Fed¬ 
eral Rules of Civil Procedure for the District Courts of the 
United States, in cause entitled United States vs. Robert Jor¬ 
dan Sopourn et al., Criminal No. 68017, as the same remains 
upon the files and of the record in said Court. 

In testimony whereof, I hereunto subscribe my name and 
affix the seal of said Court, at the City of Washington, in said 
District, this 1st day of December 1941. 

[seal] C. E. Stewart, Clerk. 

[Endorsement on cover:] No. 8071. United States of 
America, Appellant, vs. Dorsey K. Offutt et al. United States 
Court of Appeals for the District of Columbia. Filed Dec. 1, 
1941. Joseph W. Stew’art, Clerk. 

U. 3. COVCRNMCNT PRINTING OPPICCt 1t4t 
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IN THE 

United States Court of Appeals 
for the District of Columbia. 

October Term, 1941. 

No. 8071. 

United States of America, Appellant, 

v. 

Dorsey K. Offutt and Robert Jordan Sopourn, Appellees. 

BRIEF FOR APPELLEES. 

STATEMENT OF THE CASE. 

Tlie indictment charges that prior to April 19, 1941, the 

appellee Sopourn had been registered and classified under 

the provisions of the Selective Training and Service Act 
of 1940 and the rules and regulations promulgated there¬ 
under, that he had been directed to report on April 19, 1941 

for induction into the army (Appellant’s App. 4), and that 

he and the appellee Offutt conspired with each other and 

with other persons unknown to the grand jury, to commit 

the following violations of Section 11 of the statute (Ap¬ 

pellant’s App. 5): 
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1. Unlawfully to cause Sopourn knowingly and wilfully 

to fail and neglect to perform a duty required of him under 

the Act, said duty being to report for induction into the 

Army. 

2. Unlawfully to cause Sopourn knowingly, wilfully and 

unlawfully to evade service in the land forces of the United 

States. 

3. Unlawfully to cause Sopourn knowingly, wilfully and 

unlawfully to evade a requirement of the Act. 

Twelve overt acts are charged (Appellant’s App. 5-6), 
which are hereinafter discussed, and which are alleged to 

have occurred on April 14, 18 and 19, 1941. 

SUMMARY OF THE ARGUMENT. 

1. 

An allegation in an indictment for conspiracy to violate 

the Selective Training and Service Act of 1940, by causing 
one of the defendants to fail to report for induction into the 
army on April 19, 1941, fails to charge a conspiracy to 
commit such violation, when it alleges that prior to April 

19, 1941, such defendant had been designated to fill a call 
made pursuant to the Act, and that he had been ordered to 

report on April 19,1941 for induction, where the indictment 

fails to state the date or dates of such designation and order 

for induction, and where the overt acts are alleged to have 

occurred on various dates between April 14 and April 19, 

1941, so that it does not appear from the indictment whether 
the overt acts occurred before or after such designation 
and order for induction, and the indictment fails to allege 

that the designation and order for induction were in force 

at the time of the alleged conspiracy and the commission 
of the overt acts. 

2. 

A conspiracy between two persons to cause one of them 

to fail or neglect to perform a duty is a legal impossibility 
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under the Federal conspiracy statute because of the neces¬ 
sity for an overt act. 

3. 

An allegation in an indictment that the defendants con¬ 

spired to cause one of them unlawfully to evade service in 

the army, is so vague and uncertain as not properly to ap¬ 

prise the defendants of the offense with which they are 
charged. 

4. 

An allegation in an indictment that the defendants con¬ 
spired to cause one of them unlawfully to evade a require¬ 

ment of the Act is so vague and uncertain as not properly 

to apprise the defendants of the offense with which they 
are charged. 

5. 

An indictment is insufficient in which the overt acts 

charged are such as could not have had any relation to the 

objects of the conspiracy, or do not appear to have had any 
connection with the objects of the conspiracy. 
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ARGUMENT. 

1. 
An allegation in an indictment for conspiracy to violate 

the Selective Training and Service Act of 1940, by causing 
one of the defendants to fail to report for induction into the 
army on April 19,1941, fails to charge a conspiracy to com¬ 
mit such violation, when it alleges that prior to April 19, 
1941, such defendant had been designated to fill a call made 
pursuant to the Act, and that he had been ordered to report 
on April 19, 1941, for induction, where the indictment fails 
to state the date or dates of such designation and order for 
induction, and where the overt acts are alleged to have oc¬ 
curred on various dates between April 14 and April 19, 
1941, so that it does not appear from the indictment whether 
the overt acts occurred before or after such designation and 
order for induction, and the indictment fails to allege that 
the designation and order for induction were in force at the 
time of the alleged conspiracy and the commission of the 
overt acts. 

The indictment charges (Appellant’s App. 1) that the ap¬ 

pellee Sopourn was liable for military training under the 

terms of the Selective Training and Service Act of 1940, 

and had registered thereunder; that prior to April 19,1941, 

he had been classified in Class 1-A, that his order of call for 

induction into the military service had been reached, and 

that he had been designated to fill a call and had been di¬ 

rected to report on April 19, 1941 for such induction. The 

indictment then proceeds to charge (Appellant’s App. 5) 

that on April 14, 1941 and thereafter he and the appellee 

Offutt conspired to violate the Act by causing Sopourn 

knowingly and wilfully to fail to report for induction into 

the army on April 19,1941. Twelve overt acts are charged 

(Appellant’s App. 5-6), eleven of which are said to have 

occurred on either April 14, or April IS, 1941, and the 

twelfth of which is said to have occurred on April 19, 1941. 
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The Selective Training and Service Act was approved on 

September 16, 1940 and took effect immediately (Sec. 17). 

Under the allegations of the indictment, the classification of 
Sopourn and his order for induction on April 19, 1941, may 

have occurred at any time between those dates. It is not 

alleged that the classification and order for induction were 

in force on April 14, 18 and 19, the dates of the overt acts, 

and there is nothing in the indictment from which such in¬ 
ference can be drawn. 

Classifications and orders for induction are not immuta¬ 

ble. The Selective Service System authorized by Section 

10 (a) (2) of the act provides for local boards and appeal 

boards with right of appeal to the latter. 

Pursuant to the power conferred upon him by Section 10 

(a) (1) of the Act, the President has made regulations cov¬ 

ering reclassification of registrants (Selective Service Reg¬ 

ulations, sec. XXX), for appeals to appeals boards (id. sec. 

XXVII) and for appeals to the President (id. sec. XXVIII). 

It thus appears that the statement that prior to April 19, 

1941 Sopourn had been classified and ordered to report for 

induction is not the equivalent of a statement that his status 

continued during the time of the alleged conspiracy. 

On the other hand the statement in the indictment that 
the classification and order for induction occurred prior 

to April 19, 1941 does not make it appear that the overt 

acts Nos. 1 to 11 occurred subsequently to such classifica¬ 

tion and order. The so-called overt act of April 19 (No. 12) 

was not an overt act at all, by reason of its negative charac¬ 

ter, as hereinafter pointed out {infra, pp. 6, 7). 

“The general rule in reference to an indictment is 
that all the material facts and circumstances embraced 
in the definition of the offense must be stated, and that, 
if any essential element of the crime is omitted, such 
ommission cannot be supplied by intendment or impli¬ 
cation.” 

Pettibone v. United States, 148 U. S. 197, 202. 
United States v. Louisville, <&c. R. Co., 165 F. 936. 
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An indictment will not be aided by presumptions. 

People v. Schmitz, 7 Cal. A. 330, 374; 94 Pac. 419, 422. 
State v. Solomon, 97 N. J. L. 252, 256, 117 Atl. 260, 

262. 

2. 
A conspiracy between two persons to cause one of them to 

fail or neglect to perform a duty is a legal impossibility un¬ 
der the Federal conspiracy statute, because of the necessity 
for an overt act. 

A crime may arise from inaction, i. e., failure to perform 

a duty imposed by law, and, indeed, Section 11 makes such 

failure a crime. 

A failure to do something is necessarily the individual act 

of each person charged with the performance of that act. 

Since the gravamen of the offense is inaction, and since 

the Federal conspiracy statute requires more than the mere 

act of conspiring, but, in addition, prescribes as an ingredi¬ 

ent of the offense that “one or more of such parties do any 

act to effect the object of the conspiracy,’7 a conspiracy not 

to do an act becomes a legal impossibility, since there can 

be no “act to effect the object of the conspiracy” when the 

object is not to do anything at all, but, on the contrary to re¬ 
frain from action. 

Although there are many Federal statutes which make 

the omission to do an act criminal, we have found no re¬ 

ported cases in which were involved indictments for con¬ 

spiracy on the part of two persons to cause one of them, to 

omit such act. 

It is conceivable that at common law there could be a con¬ 

spiracy between two persons which had for its object the 

failure of one of them to perform a legal duty, since no 
overt act is necessary at common law. So, also, under the 

Federal conspiracy statute, there could be a conspiracy be¬ 

tween two persons to induce a third to fail to perform a 
duty, cf. Goldman v. United States, 245 U. S. 474. In such 
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case the conspirators are the persons who devise the plan 

to induce the third person, and the overt act is the state¬ 

ment made or thing: done to influence the action of the per¬ 
son who is under a dutv to act. But that is whollv differ- 

» * 

ent from a charge against two persons that they conspired 

to have one of their number neglect a duty, because in such 

case while there exists the element of combination and 

planning, no overt act is possible. 

“Section 37 [of the Penal Code; 18 U. S. C. sec. 88] 
* * * does not cover the case of one, acting alone, who 
induces another, subject to the provisions of the [Selec¬ 
tive Service] act [of 1917) to fail to register, etc.” 

United States v. Prieth, 251 F. 946, 954. 

3. 

An allegation in an indictment that the defendants con¬ 
spired to cause one of them unlawfully to evade service in 
the army, is so vague and uncertain as not properly to ap¬ 
prise the defendants of the offense with which they are 
charged. 

It is not necessary that an indictment state the evidence 

by means of which the prosecution intends to sustain its 

charge. On the other hand, it is not sufficient for the indict¬ 

ment merely to state that the lawr has been violated, without 

stating in what respect it has been violated. 

If by the expression “to . . . evade service” it was in¬ 
tended merely to repeat in different form the charge in re¬ 

gard to failure and neglect to report for induction, we rely 

oil the arguments under Point 2 of this brief. If a different 

offense was intended, then the charge is insufficient as stat¬ 

ing merely a conclusion of law without stating the manner of 

evasion. 

Section 11 of the Act denounces a number of methods of 
evasion, i. e., the knowingly making or being a party to the 

making of any false, improper or incorrect registration, 

classification, physical or mental examination, deferment, 
induction, enrollment or muster; the knowingly making or 
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being a party to the making of any false statement or cer¬ 

tificate as to fitness or liability of any person for service; 

and otherwise evading registration. The indictment does 

not specify which of these methods of evasion were the 
objects of the alleged conspiracy. 

‘‘In an indictment upon a statute, it is not sufficient 
to set forth the offence in the words of the statute, un¬ 
less those words of themselves fully, directly, and ex¬ 
pressly, without any uncertainty or ambiguity, set 
forth all the elements necessary to constitute the of¬ 
fence intended to be punished; ...” 

United States v. Carll, 105 U. S. 611, 612. 

See also Hunter v. District of Columbia, 47 App. D. C. 

406, 40S. 

“It is an elementary principle of criminal pleading, 
that where the definition of an offence, whether it be 
at common law or by statute, ‘includes generic terms, 
it is not sufficient that the indictment shall charge the 
offence in the same generic terms as in the definition; 
but it must state the species;—it must descend to par¬ 
ticulars.’ ” 

Armour Packing Co. v. United States, 209 U. S. 56, 
83 

United States v. Cruikshank, 92 U. S., 542, 558. 

“An indictment should contain every essential fact nec¬ 
essary to clearly define the crime, and the offense 
sought to be charged should be set out with sufficient 
accuracy and completeness to support a judgment, 
either upon demurrer or conviction.” 

United States v. Geare, 54 App. D. C. 30, 33; 293 F. 
997. 

See also United States v. Standard Brewery, 251 U. S. 210, 
220. 

“Accused persons, as matter of common justice, 
ought to have the charge against them set forth in such 
terms that they may readily understand the nature and 
character of the accusation, in order that they, when 
arraigned, may know what answer to make to it, and 
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that they may not be embarrased in conducting their 
defense; and the charge ought also to be laid in such 
terms that, if the party accused is put to trial, the ver¬ 
dict and judgment may be pleaded in bar of a second 
accusation for the same offense.” 

Armour Packing Co. v. United States, 209 U. S. 56, 83. 
United States v. Cruikshank, 92 U. S. 542, 568. 
Moens v. United States, 50 App. 1). C. 15, 19; 267 F. 

317, 321. 
United States v. Wills, 36 F. (2d) 855, 858. 
Hewitt v. United States, 110 F. (2d) 1, 5. 

An indictment charging that defendants conveyed false 

reports with intent to interfere with the success of the mili¬ 

tary and naval forces of the United States, etc., but which 

did not specify the reports or to whom they were made, but 

merely followed the language of the statute, was held insuf¬ 

ficient in Foster v. United States, 253 F. 481, 482. 

See also United States v. Carll, 105 U. S. 611, 612. 

The allegation that one of the objects of the conspiracy 

was to cause Sopourn to evade service, is merely the state¬ 

ment of a conclusion. This is not sufficient. 

United States v. P. Koenig Coal Co., 291 F. 385, 388 
(allegation that defendant made use of a “decep¬ 
tive” device). 

United States v. Fuselier, 46 F. (2d) 568 (allegation 
that defendants conspired to conceal property in 
violation of Bankruptcy Law). 

United States v. Hess, 124 U. S. 483 (allegation of 
conspiracy to defraud). 

In charging an offense of general character it is necessary 

to allege some fact or circumstance which will identify the 

particular offense charged sufficiently to distinguish it from 

other similar offenses. 
Hood v. United States, 43 F. (2d) 353. 
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An allegation that acts done were in violation of statute is 

merely a conclusion of law. 

Middlebrooks v. United States, 23 F. (2d) 244. 

Indictment charging that defendant possessed articles de¬ 

signed for unlawful manufacture of intoxicating liquors, was 

held insufficient in— 
United States v. Horton, 282 F. 731, 732. 

4. 

An allegation in an indictment that the defendants con¬ 
spired to cause one of them unlawfully to evade a require¬ 
ment of the Act is so vague and uncertain as not properly 
to apprise the defendants of the offense with which they are 
charged. 

The third object of the conspiracy is alleged to have been 

to cause Sopourn unlawfully to evade “a requirement” of 

the Act. This portion of the indictment is subject to the 

same attack as that discussed under Point 3. The 

arguments under that head apply with even stronger force, 

as the charge that an object of the conspiracy was to cause 

Sopourn to evade “a requirement of the act,” is even vaguer 

than the charge in regard to causing Sopourn unlawfully to 

evade service in the army. 

5. 

An indictment is insufficient in which the overt acts 
charged are such as could not have had any relation to the 
objects of the conspiracy, or do not appear to have had any 
connection with the objects of the conspiracy. 

Twelve overt acts are charged (Appellant’s App. 5-6). 

They consist of two conversations between Sopourn and the 
chairman of his local board (Nos. 1, 2), the nature of wdrich 

is not in any manner revealed; a telephone conversation 

between Offut and the chairman of the local board (No. 3), 
the nature of which is not in any manner revealed; a con- 
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versation between the appellees (No. 4), concerning the 

necessity of Sopourn reporting for induction on the dat|e 

specified therefor, which, being a communication betwee^i 

the alleged conspirators, could not possibly be considered 
to be an overt act; the preparation by Offutt of two affi¬ 

davits relating to a supposed claim of dependency of So¬ 

pourn (No. 5), with no allegation that the affidavit was false 

or was ever executed or, if executed, was ever used for anjJ 

purpose or exhibited to any person; the writing of a letter 

by Offutt to the chairman of the local board and the deliv¬ 
ery thereof (Nos. 6, 7), the contents of the letter not being 

revealed; three conversations between Offutt and one 

Leonard A. Block (Nos. 8, 9, 11), the nature of the conver¬ 

sations not being revealed; advice by Offutt to Sopourn 
not to report on the designated day for induction into the 

army (No. 10), such advice, having been a transaction be-] 

tween the alleged conspirators and obviously not an overt] 

act; and the failure of Sopourn to appear for induction as 
ordered (No. 12), which inaction, as argued under Point 2 
{ante, pp. 6, 7), could not be an overt act. 

The indictment thus fails to make it appear that the overt 

acts were or could have been in furtherance of the objects 

of the alleged conspiracy, and the allegation of the indict¬ 

ment that they were in furtherance thereof does not aid it. 

In United States v. Biggs, 157 F. 264, there was an in¬ 

dictment for conspiracy to defraud the United States in 

connection with an entry for public land; certain overt acts 

were charged, all of which except one had occurred at times 

beyond the period of the statute of limitations. It was con- 

tended that the averment of the last act was sufficient to 

avoid the bar of the statute. The court, however, held that 

the statute was applicable, for the reason that the last act 

charged could not have been done to effect the object of 

the conspiracy. In the course of its opinion the court rec¬ 

ognized the principle for which the appellees here contend, 

in the following language (page 273): | 

“It is contended for the government, and authorities 
have been cited to that effect, that, if the overt act is 
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charged to have been to effect the object of the con¬ 
spiracy, it becomes a question for the jury, and not for 
the court, to say whether such overt act was done to 
effect the unlawful purpose. But in those cases it does 
not affirmatively appear from the charge that the overt 
act could not have had such an effect, while here I think 
it does appear that this overt act could not by any 
possibility have been done to effect the object of the 
conspiracy. Bearing in mind the offense charged, to 
wit, a conspiracy to defraud the United States, is it 
not apparent that the mere execution of the deed by 
Barth to the lands could have no such effect? I think 
it is.” 

“Shall the court consider the legal sufficiency of the 
overt acts, or is the statement that they were overt acts 
for ‘executing said * • * conspiracy * # * as charged’ 
sufficient? The government contends that is a matter 
for the jury. I am familiar with the authorities so hold¬ 
ing. The record in these cases distinguishes them from 
the facts here. There is no question, I think, if, after 
all of the evidence is presented, there is no testimony 
showing an overt act charged to have tended to effect 
the object of the conspiracy, the duty to direct a verdict 
of not guilty would be plain. If no act to effect the 
crime is shown by the indictment, the plan being set 
out, as here, I think it is likewise the plain duty of the 
court to so determine. (U. S. v. Biggs (D. C.), 157 Fed. 
264; U. S. v. McLaughlin (D C.), 169 Fed. 302; U. S. v. 
Greene (D. C.), 115 Fed. 343. * • * Without an act to 
‘effect the object’ no offense appears. * * * 

‘ ‘ An act, then which would not have a tendency to pro¬ 
duce, cause, execute, enforce, achieve, accomplish, or 
bring about the unlawful enterprise, would not be an 
overt act; and where the completed plan and act are set 
out, as here, I think it is the duty of the court to con¬ 
sider and determine whether an offense is stated. A 
court or a jury has no more right to draw inferences 
from facts that do not necessarily and legitimately au¬ 
thorize such inference than to find any other fact with¬ 
out evidence.” 

United States v. Ault, 263 F. 800, 803. 
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“ * * * there is considerable authority to the effect 
that if any act is set forth and is alleged by the pleader 
to have been done pursuant to the conspiracy or to 
effect its object, this is enough, though there is no ap¬ 
parent connection between the overt act and the object. 
This seems unsound in principle, for relevancy is for 
the court and not for the pleader. If the act must be 
qualified by circumstances to make it relevant it should 
be pleaded, not simpliciter, but with these circum¬ 
stances which make it relevant.” 

Tillinghast v. Richards, 225 F. 226,230. 

See also United States v. Ruroede, 220 F. 210, 213. 

“It seems to me that an overt act must be an act 
which has a tendency at any rate to carry out the ob¬ 
ject of the conspiracy, or in some way tends to make it 
effectual. It may not be sufficient of itself to complete 
the offense, but it should have a tendency to do so. 
• • m ft 

United States v. McLaughlin, 169 F. 302, 307. 

In this case the court is called upon to say that conversa¬ 

tions between and correspondence between the defendants 

and the chairman of the local board, who is not said to have 

been a party to the alleged conspiracy; conversations be¬ 
tween Offutt and one Block, who is not said to have been a 
party to the conspiracy; the preparation by Offutt of an af¬ 

fidavit not shown to have been either executed or used for 

any purpose; and a discussion between the defendants and 
advice given by one defendant to the other; constitute overt 

acts to effect the object of the alleged conspiracy. The enu¬ 

meration of these acts seems to demonstrate the impossibil¬ 
ity of their tending to such effectuation. If there are cir¬ 

cumstances beyond the imagination of counsel for the ap¬ 

pellees, which make them relevant to the alleged conspiracy, 

it was the duty of the prosecutor to include them in the in¬ 

dictment. 

If anything as to the nature of the facts upon which the 

indictment is based can be deduced therefrom, it is that Mr. 
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Offutt, who is a member of the Bar,1 advised the appellee 
Sopourn, as an attorney, in regard to his liability for mili¬ 
tary service, in view of the fact that he had a claim for de¬ 
ferment on the ground of dependency (Appellant’s App. 6, 
par. 10), and that his communications with the chairman of 
the local board and with Mr. Block, also a member of the 
Bar, was with relation thereto. It is not alleged that the 
claim was false, or that the advice was incorrect or im¬ 
proper. Even if Mr. Olfutt had in good faith mistakenly 
advised Sopourn as to his rights and liability for service, 
w’hich w*e do not concede, his activities did not subject him 
to criminal liability, nor did the consultation and advice 
mentioned as overt acts, either with or without the other so- 
called overt acts, amounts to a conspiracy. 

Firpo v. United States, 261 F. 850. 
People v. Kresel, 277 N. Y. S. 168. 

See also Savings Bank v. Ward, 100 U. S. 195, as to civil 
liability. 

CONCLUSION. 

The judgment of the District Court, w’liich sustained the 
demurrers to the indictment, should be affirmed. 

Respectfully submitted, 

Henry I. Quinn, 

Woodward Building, 
Washington, D. C., 

Attorney for Appellee Dorsey K. Offutt. 

Charles E. Ford, 

Columbian Building, 
Washington, D. C. 

Lawrence Koenigsberger, 

Woodward Building, 
Washington, D. C-, 

Attorneys for Appellee Sopourn. 

l The court will take judicial notice of the roll of its attorneys, who are its 
officers. Booth v. Fletcher, 69 App. D. C. 351, 355, 101 F. (2d) 676; Ferris 
v. Commercial National Bank, 158 111. 237, 241, 41 N. E. 1118; Rose v. Parker, 
116 Me. 52, 54, 99 Atl. 817; People v. Nevins, 1 HiU (N. Y.) 154, 161. 




